
SCRUTINY : REGENERATION AND 
PUBLIC PROTECTION MEETING

2.30 pm TUESDAY, 27TH NOVEMBER, 2018

CONFERENCE ROOM 3

A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 2.00 pm.  
This Meeting is for Committee Members only 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Economic Growth Strategy and Partnership 
To consider report of the Chief Officer Community 
Regeneration

3 - 10

4. Introduction to the Geosense Intelligence System 

5. Welsh National Library Standards 
To consider report of the Chief Officer Community 
Regeneration

11 - 28

6. Work Programme 2018/19 
To consider the attached report 29 - 38

7. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow Up 
Actions 

8. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair

9. Any Other Business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillors:  J Amos (Chair)
                     C J Barry (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: S P Brown, M Colbran, G Lewis and 
S Thomas

Co-optee(s): H Hopkins, H Jackson and M Ellis

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 
 

Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8AN 

 
Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Economic Growth Strategy & Partnership 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 Economic regeneration, through increasing employment, encouraging business 
growth and tackling social disadvantage, is an important activity for Merthyr Tydfil 
County Borough Council and its partners.  It contributes to local strategic aims in 
advancing Merthyr’s economic well-being and underpins cross-cutting approaches 
to tackle deprivation as a result of industrial decline. 
 

1.2 MTCBC plays a pivotal role as a connector; both with local businesses and those 
looking to set-up a business in Merthyr Tydfil. The Economic Growth Strategy 
underlines the 2 groups that act as a mechanism of support, those being the 
Strategic and Operational groups. The groups will have specific roles aligned to 
them that will ensure prompt and professional support linked to the employability 
and training requirements of businesses and individuals. It is imperative to add 
that this process is undertaken using a ‘one point of contact’ principle to avoid 
excess of initial interaction between agencies and employers. 
 

1.3 There are 4 key priority areas that have been highlighted to be addressed 
simultaneously to enable economic regeneration and bring economic growth to 
Merthyr Tydfil.  These priority areas include: 
 

- The economic base; 
- The labour market; 
- Skills; and 
- Physical infrastructure. 

 
1.4 In order to achieve holistic economic growth these four elements must be 

developed and co-ordinated in a single strategic plan which is to be named 
Merthyr Tydfil Council’s Economic Growth Strategy.  It is imperative that all key 
delivery partners are engaged in setting the strategic priorities.  The plan also 

Date Written 12/11/2018 

Report Author Jared Green 

Service Area Community Regeneration 

Committee Date Tuesday 27th November 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



requires a single operational planning process based on greater integrated 
planning.  It is also critical that all internal departments within the local authority 
and partner organisations have clarity in their individual role in operational delivery 
arrangements. 
 

1.5 Consultancy firm Wavehill had initially developed a brief based on 1 of the 4 key 
priority areas as part of the overall development of an Economic Growth Strategy. 
That being AIM 2: Create a flexible, resilient and responsive labour market. Since 
the development of this document, consultancy firm ‘The Means’ have been 
tasked with developing The Economic Growth Strategy as a robust strategic 
document that will act as a working manuscript for MTCBC and will encompass 
the 4 key strands within the ‘Plan on a page’ along and look at merging it with key 
internal and external strategies. 
 
The key priorities within our Economic Development Plan on a page are: 
 
AIM 1: To support the creation of the right type of businesses supported by 

the right type of business infrastructure 
AIM 2: Create a flexible, resilient and responsive labour market 
AIM 3: Improve skill levels to support business growth 
AIM 4: Create the right infrastructure to enable and accelerate business 

growth 
 

 

1.5 The next step is to actively connect the Tackling Poverty Strategy, Focus on the 
Future and the Economic Growth Strategy via an Action Plan. This will enable 
those responsible departments within the Local Authority to align delivery services 
against the action plan. 
 

1.6 The Means will also look to include partners operating within Merthyr Tydfil each of 
whom provides Employability and Training support to the new Economic Growth 
Partnership ‘Operational Group’. The Means will also confirm the new Economic 
Growth Partnerships ‘Strategic Group’ and present the (draft) final version of the 
Economic Growth Strategy to the Strategic Group for sign off.  
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 

2.1 To note progress made to date on the production of a an Economic Growth 
Strategy  
 

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 Economic Regeneration, through increasing employment, encouraging business 
growth and tackling social disadvantage, is an important activity for Merthyr Tydfil 
County Borough Council and its partners.  It contributes to local strategic aims in 
advancing Merthyr’s economic well-being and underpins cross-cutting approaches 
to tackle deprivation as a result of industrial decline.  
 

3.2 MTCBC plays a pivotal role as a connector; both with local businesses and those 
looking to set-up a business in Merthyr Tydfil. The Economic Growth Strategy 
underlines the 2 groups that act as a mechanism of support, those being the 
Strategic and Operational groups.  
 
 Page 4



 
3.3 These 2 groups will have specific roles aligned to them that will ensure prompt and 

professional support linked to the employability and training requirements of 
businesses and individuals. It is imperative to add that this process is undertaken 
using a ‘One point of contact’ principle to avoid excess of initial interaction 
between agencies and employers. 
 

3.4 There are 4 key priority areas that have been highlighted to be addressed 
simultaneously to enable economic regeneration and bring economic growth to 
Merthyr Tydfil.  These priority areas include: 

 

 The economic base – the existing business and business infrastructure that 
exists locally and constitutes the sum total local GDP; 

 The labour market – all residents of a working age who are employed, 
unemployed or economically inactive; 

 Skills – those by qualification and work-based skills; and 

 Physical infrastructure – such as roads, buildings etc., and also ICT 
infrastructure. 

 
3.5 In order to achieve holistic economic growth these four elements must be 

developed and co-ordinated in a single strategic plan, (Economic Growth 
Strategy).  It is imperative that all key delivery partners are engaged in setting the 
strategic priorities and are clear on the outcomes which are to be achieved.  The 
plan also requires a single operational planning process based on greater 
integrated planning.  It is also critical that all internal departments within the local 
authority and partner organisations have clarity in their individual role in 
operational delivery arrangements/accountabilities. 

 
3.6 The vision of the Economic Growth Plan for Merthyr Tydfil is ‘to create a diverse 

and vibrant economy with a skilled, flexible and well paid work force and well 
developed business infrastructure’. Achieving the vision will position Merthyr Tydfil 
as a key regional centre within the Cardiff City Region. 

 
3.7 The Council cannot deliver the necessary intervention to facilitate this process 

alone. It is essential that key partners are engaged to develop an Economic 
Growth Strategy that will integrate the connection between the key priority areas. 
This is critical to achieving sustained and sustainable economic growth in Merthyr 
Tydfil. 

 
3.8 If the Economic Growth Strategy is to become a ‘game changer’ in the economic 

fortunes of Merthyr Tydfil, the current pace of economic recovery must increase, 
which can only be achieved by doing things differently.   

 
3.9 An outline strategy on a page to deliver a new Economic Growth Strategy has 

been produced.  There are four strategic aims on which the plan is based: 

 To support the creation of the right type of businesses supported by the 
right type of business infrastructure  

 Create a flexible, resilient and responsive labour market  

 Improve skills levels to support business growth  

 Create the right infrastructure to enable and accelerate business growth  
 

  Page 5



4.0 WHERE WE WERE 
 

4.1 Consultancy firm Wavehill had initially developed a brief based on 1 of the 4 key 
priority areas as part of the overall development of an Economic Growth Strategy. 
That being AIM 2: Create a flexible, resilient and responsive labour market. Since 
the development of this document, consultancy firm ‘The Means’ have been 
tasked with developing The Economic Growth Strategy as a robust strategic 
document that will act as a working manuscript for MTCBC and will encompass 
the 4 key strands within the ‘Plan on a page’ along and look at merging it with key 
internal and external strategies.    
 

4.2 The Strategy development has taken more time than planned due to the need for 
a reactive response from the Economic Growth Partnership in relation to the 
inward investment and arrival of the new potential employers, namely, General 
Dynamics and Trago Mills. The partnership, alongside the Local Authority who 
were responsible for the coordination of the response from the partners, were 
somewhat inadvertently detached from the strategies development in order to 
focus on the employability and training for General Dynamics and more 
prominently Trago Mills. The magnitude of the Trago Mills development was 
unprecedented and this was a serious test of how the Local Authority coordinated 
the partnerships response in kept to the principles and ethos of the Economic 
Growth Partnership. 
 

4.3 The successful reaction to the Trago Mills developments meant that the Council 
and partnership were able to look at the Strategy in more detail and this 
highlighted a clear need for what had been produced to be revisited to include the 
new strategies that impacted on employability. After much deliberation between 
partners and internal Council staff, the consultancy firm ‘The Means’ have been 
tasked with developing The Economic Growth Strategy as a robust strategic 
document that will act as a working manuscript for MTCBC and will encompass 
the 4 key strands within the ‘Plan on a page’ along and look at merging it with key 
internal and external strategies. 

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 

5.1 We are in receipt of the draft final version of the Economic Growth Strategy and 
we are currently undergoing a review of the partnership structure so that we can 
present to the appropriate representatives from each partner organisation. We 
have engaged with key officers within the Local Authority regarding the current 
Draft Version of the Economic Growth Strategy and have sought feedback in 
relation to what has been finalised. 
 

5.2 There is a considerable appetite to ensure the key objectives within the Economic 
Growth Strategy and the Poverty Strategy are aligned into an Action Plan. The 
next step is to actively connect the Tackling Poverty Strategy, Focus on the Future 
and the Economic Growth Strategy via a newly developed Action Plan. This will 
enable those responsible departments within the Local Authority to align delivery 
services against the action plan. 
 

5.3 The current structure of the Economic Growth Partnership needs reviewing as the 
envisaged set up of a ‘Strategic and Operational’ group has, in essence, 
dispersed from its original form. A more focussed and formal approach is required 
in order to create the groups successfully with the right people in the right group 
so that we can deliver against the objectives set within the Action Plan. 
 Page 6



  
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 
 

Since the last report the Economic Growth Partnership were integral in supporting 
Trago Mills and Amber Taverns to successfully employ the (circa) 350 people that 
they had initially envisaged. The Economic Growth Partnership supported Trago 
Mills with the employment of over 200 posts of whom were Merthyr Tydfil 
residents.   
 
The Partnership supported Trago Mills with: 
 

 6000 applications received, screened and scored 

 1200 interviews booked 

 A 3 day Jobs fair attracting over 2500 jobseekers  

 350 new jobs with 150 more being made available in around 18 months 

 Over 200 of the posts were filled by Merthyr residents 40% of which were 
unemployed, the rest of the posts were filled from RCT 58, Blaenau Gwent 
43, Caerphilly 20, Brecon 1, Cardiff 2, Newport 3 and Swansea 2. 

 
The Partnership supported Amber Taverns with: 
 

 A pre-screening of all potential applicants 

 Provided applicants who were work ready from internal employability 
programme such as Communities for Work and Communities for Work 
Plus. 

 Use of the Orbit Centre to conduct interviews 

 Provision of First Aid training for all successful applicants 

 Links to a local brewery in Merthyr Tydfil which was originally set up via the 
local authorities Meanwhile Project.  Twin Taf are now supplying Amber 
Taverns in Merthyr Tydfil with their local products. 

 The partnership provided Amber Taverns with 10 local people to fill their 12-
strong team in Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

 
More recently the Economic Growth Partnership have been focussing on 
developments linked to Vision Modular Homes which plan to bring over 250 jobs in 
their site in Pentrebach.  A series of meetings have taken place to establish a 
relationship and promote the work and potential support that can be offered to 
Vision as a key employer in Merthyr and this work will continue throughout 2019. 
 
 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 
 

6.1 The Strategy will now follow a process of sign off from the Economic Growth 
Strategic group so that the final version of the Economic Growth Strategy can be 
presented to Council and signed off in readiness for next phase of development. 
 

6.2 We envisage that the Economic Growth Strategy will be launched in early 2019. 
 

6.3 To have a newly established Economic Growth Partnership and a separate 
Economic Growth Operational group that will respond to employer needs as they 
emerge.   
 

6.4 As part of the next stage future developments we envisage holding a stakeholders 
event to devise a delivery plan that will be intrinsically linked to the Action Plan. 

Page 7



The Action plan will merge the Economic Growth Strategy and the Poverty 
Strategy. 
 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 
 

7.1 To work in partnership with The Means to establish the new Strategic Group which 
will sign off the draft final version of the Economic Growth Strategy and will look at 
key strategies aligned to the Economic Growth Strategy.  
 

7.2 Look to merge the key objectives of the Economic Growth Strategy and the 
Poverty Strategy and align so that it becomes a working document for the 
departments/partners involved.  
 

7.3 Agree a launch date for the Economic Growth Strategy and re-establish the 
Economic Growth Partnership which will drive forward the development of a 
delivery plan. 
 

7.4 Gain agreement from the Economic Growth Partnership to agree partners who will 
attend the Operational Group meetings that will respond to employers recruitment 
needs in the future. 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 

8.1 The Council has 4 key wellbeing objectives under the following themes: 
 

 Best Start to Life; 

 Working Life; 

 Environmental Wellbeing; and  

 Living Well. 
 

At this stage of the project, the Economic Growth Strategy can be seen to directly 
contribute to the attainment of 2 of the 4 wellbeing objectives:  
 

 Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped with 
the skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals; and 

 People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the needs of 
businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure making Merthyr Tydfil an 
attractive destination. 

 

There is also an indirect contribution to the remaining wellbeing objective: People 
are empowered to live independently within their communities, where they are 
safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. 
  

8.2 The development of the Economic Growth Strategy and the work supporting the 
next steps have been undertaken using the sustainable development principle 
(i.e.) balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability to also 
meet long-term needs; acting in collaboration with other people, organisations that 
could help MTCBC meet its wellbeing objectives; and involving people with an 
interest in achieving the wellbeing goals and ensuring that those people reflect the 
diversity of Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

 
ALYN OWEN 
CHIEF OFFICER – COMMUNITY 
REGENERATION 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS – 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER: REGENERATION 

& PUBLIC PROTECTION Page 8



 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

Yes / No* 

  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8AN 

 
Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Welsh Public Library Standards 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 The attached documents provide the full Welsh Public Library Standards return for  
the authority to Welsh Government alongside the draft return from Welsh 
Government. While the day to day responsibility for Library services falls to 
Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust, the responsibility for Library services remains with the 
Local Authority under the 1964 Libraries and Museums Act. 
. 

1.2 The return has now been submitted for this year and the Committee is requested 
to review, accept and ratify the report on the Performance of the Library Service of 
the last year through a scrutiny process to be a final submission to Welsh 
Government.   
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 

2.1 The report is reviewed, accepted and ratified. 
  
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The report is being presented to scrutiny as the local authority must have a 
process in place to ratify the submission of the report to Welsh Government. 
Scrutiny is being asked to look at the report, challenge any issues identified and 
ultimately ratify it in its current form for submission to Welsh Government in li ne 
with the responsibilities held by the authority under the 1964 Libraries and 
Museum Act.  
 

3.2 As the report will be made available through local channels, as well as through 
Welsh Government, it is important that the authority is aware of this and has had 

Date Written 20/10/2018 

Report Author Jane Sellwood 

Service Area Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries 

Committee Date 27th November 2018 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



the opportunity to engage fully with the process. The Welsh Public Library 
Standards are the method by which the minister with responsibility for Library 
Services is able to measure whether an authority is complying with its statutory 
duty. 

  

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 
 

4.1 This is the first measured year of this framework.  The local authority performed 
well against the previous framework maintaining levels of performance despite 
decreasing budgets. 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 

5.1 Performance has been maintained despite further staffing and budgetary 
reductions. As the new framework is very similar to the previous one, it can be 
compared and there has been no material difference to front line services. 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 
 

6.1 We are hoping that the continued success of the service comes through the next 
year and the final year of the framework. We are unlikely to ever reach the 
required staffing level without significant investment in the service. 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 
 

7.1 We regularly review policies, practices and procedures in relation to the standards 
and will continue to do this to develop more work alongside the WPLS framework, 
especially in relation to health and wellbeing. 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 

8.1 The new framework specifically deals with the wellbeing objectives: 
 
A prosperous Wales 
Development of a skilled and well educated population is a fundamental aspect of 
public libraries’ activity. Examples of how this is achieved include providing access 
to a world of lifelong learning through relevant book stock and online information, 
and the provision of free IT equipment, broadband and Wi-Fi , which supports 
education, small businesses and job seeking. Core entitlements 2, 3, 6 and 7, and 
quality indicators 1, 3, 5, 7, 8, 9, 12, 13 and 15 all monitor aspects of public 
libraries’ contribution to this goal. 
A resilient Wales 
Social and economic resilience is supported by encouraging and promoting 
individual personal development, enabling people and society to adapt to changing 
circumstances. Regular consultation with users ensures that the services 
themselves are resilient and able to adapt to changing needs. Two core 
entitlements are particularly pertinent here, 3 and 11, together with quality 
indicators 4, 11 and 14. Examples of how this is achieved in practice include 
support for greater community involvement in running library services, and book 
stock that encourages a more resilient lifestyle with access to IT so people can self 
educate about the issues. 
A healthier Wales 
Physical and mental well-being is a key offer of public libraries, not only by 
providing information on which to base informed choices for the benefit of health in Page 12



the future but also designated collections and schemes such as Book Prescription 
Wales titles loaned through libraries, which directly benefit individuals with health 
concerns. Relevant core entitlements for this goal are 3 and 4; quality indicators 1, 
4, and 6 monitor activity. 
 
A more equal Wales 

Libraries are welcoming, inclusive and offer pro‑active outreach and public 

engagement activities in deprived and socially excluded communities. Support for 
government initiatives such as Universal Jobmatch and Universal Credit enable 
those without IT skills or facilities to fulfil their potential. Core entitlements 1, 2, 4, 6 
and 7, and quality indicators 3, 4, 11, 13 and 14, all monitor public libraries’ 
contribution to this goal. 
 

A Wales of cohesive communities 

Libraries offer a safe neutral place within the community which provides 
opportunities for people to connect with each other. The one-stop-shop or hub 
model being developed in many areas further connects local communities with the 
services they need. Other examples include support for community involvement 
through the provision of information about the local area. Core entitlements 1, 3 
and 5, and quality indicators 1, 6, 13 and 16  monitor aspects of public libraries’ 
contribution to this goal. 
 

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 

With explicit provision in the current framework covering the provision of material 
in the Welsh language, libraries are well placed to contribute in this area. They 
promote and protect Welsh culture and language, and encourage participation in 
the arts and recreation through the availability of a good range of stock in Welsh, 
and a host of cultural events and activities. Core entitlements include 2, 3, 6, 8, 9, 
and 10, and quality indicators 2, 6, 8, 9 and particularly 10 are all relevant here. 
 

A globally responsible Wales 

A commitment to make the most efficient use of resources is embodied in the 
Quality indicators. MALD works with the British Standards Institute and 
International Standards Organisation in developing and using quality indicators for 
libraries which conform to ISO 11620. Further, the borrowing of books is a great 
recycling tool, reducing the impact  on the environment. Libraries in Wales work 
together in book purchasing consortia, digital/e-book consortia and the All Wales 
Library Management System. Core entitlement 12 is directly related to global good 
practice, while quality indictors 14 and 15 are related to the balance and efficiency 
of service provision.  
 

 
ALYN OWEN 
CHIEF OFFICER – COMMUNITY 
REGENERATION 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS – 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER: REGENERATION 

& PUBLIC PROTECTION 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Welsh Public Library 
Standards Framework 

 Welsh Public Library Standards - Framework 
6.xlsx 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

Yes / No* 

  
Page 13

Welsh%20Public%20Library%20Standards%20-%20Framework%206.xlsx
Welsh%20Public%20Library%20Standards%20-%20Framework%206.xlsx


This page is intentionally left blank



Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 
Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries Welsh Public Library Standards Narrative 

[Type text] 
 

 

The updated well-being objectives in the Programme for Government highlights the following key 

areas for action. 

The well-being objectives are:  

 Support people and businesses to drive prosperity 

 Tackle regional inequality and promote fair work 

 Drive sustainable growth and combat climate change 

 Deliver quality health and care services fit for the future 

 Promote good health and well-being for everyone  

 Build healthier communities and better environments  

 Support young people to make the most of their potential  

 Build ambition and encourage learning for life  

 Equip everyone with the right skills for a changing world 

 Build resilient communities, culture, and language  

 Deliver modern and connected infrastructure  

 Promote and protect Wales’ place in the world  

These objectives are focused on a Wales that is healthy and active, prosperous and secure, 

ambitious and learning, and united and connected, and are underpinned by the wellbeing of Future 

Generations Act. 

In light of this the local authority has developed its own focus on four key objectives: 

Best Start to Life (BS) 

Children get the best start to life 

Children and young people are equipped with the skills they need to be successful  learners and 

confident individuals 

Working Life (WL) 

Making skills work for Merthyr Tydfil: Developing the workforce of the future 

Developing the environment and infrastructure for business to flourish 

Environmental Wellbeing (EW) 

Communities protect, enhance and promote our natural environment and countryside 

Communities protect, develop and promote our heritage and cultural assets 

 

 

Page 15



Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 
Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries Welsh Public Library Standards Narrative 

[Type text] 
 

Living Well (LW) 

Developing safer communities 

People have good physical and mental health 

People live independently 

 

The authority has further developed its visual representation of how this fits with the wellbeing plan: 

 

All priority outcomes link through to the Programme for Government and so by concentrating on 

those which are specific to Merthyr Tydfil’s Local Wellbeing plan we are also contributing to the 

wider agenda in Wales. The contribution of Library services to each of the wellbeing goals has been 

clearly documented through the document ‘Connected and Ambitious Libraries’ and how the 

framework further supports this. Each of the local objectives within Merthyr Tydfil is able to be 

clearly supported by activity and contributions from Library services. The list is certainly not 

exhaustive and each aspect fits more than one of the key priority outcomes on a local level, so have 

been grouped together to avoid duplication: 

 We have maintained and expanded our online free reference facilities for all members. As 

far as possible we make them available for home use 24/7, so that they are there whenever 

the user might wish to use them.  

 We maintain free computer facilities in our buildings, open and available whenever the 

libraries are.  

Page 16



Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 
Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries Welsh Public Library Standards Narrative 

[Type text] 
 

 We have subscriptions to ebook, emagazine and  eAudio service which is free for all our 

members. Whilst the majority of items included are recreational fiction or non fiction, it also 

includes a selection of study aids and self help stock, which are free to access and use. 

 We continue to develop our links with organisations and community groups using the 

facilities in all borough libraries.  

 We provide outreach sets of quick reads, graded readers and other materials for adult 

learners at all levels.   

 We hold large collections of Welsh learners materials, and work to provide as much stock in 

Welsh as we can, and to promote its use to those in the area. 

 We continue to promote recreational personal reading as well as reading linked to study, as 

is evidenced in our significant investment of staff and time in the annual summer reading 

scheme for children.  

 We actively promote digital inclusion across all libraries through a variety of classes, 

activities and events. These are run through a variety of volunteer and staff sessions. All are 

involved in learning themselves and encouraging learning for life in others.  

 We work closely with Voluntary Action Merthyr Tydfil (VAMT) to find, teach and develop the 

use volunteers in many areas of the library service, so that we benefit from their experiences 

and knowledge, and they benefit from working with us and developing their skills.  

 We have hosted a variety of classes for adults, ranging from computing, Crochet and 

Knitting, Stop Smoking, Mindfulness, ESOL and many others. The occasional events have 

included poetry afternoons, writing workshops and local history walk and talk days.  

 We are a key player in the promotion and delivery of the Bookstart scheme locally, and use 

our contacts to encourage family learning amongst the recipients of the packs.  

 Family Programmes visit every term with parents and children enrolled on courses from 

various primary schools in the Borough. The library staff who facilitate these visits convey 

key messages of reading for pleasure and the enjoyment of books and reading. 

 We have good relationships with many local schools and teachers and have developed these 

relationships further through reading groups in schools, young librarian training days, writing 

and reading activities and many other events and activities. 

 Merthyr Tydfil was one of the pilot authorities for the ECALM project and we are very 

committed to continuing this project. 

 Following on from ECALM we have also forged links with the local college and applied the 

same principles to the college students, in so far as, the students can opt out of becoming 

library members, but are joined as part of their induction. This is especially relevant for the 

students based next door to the Central Library, where they can use internet and other 

facilities, without having to return to the main college building. 

Page 17



Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 
Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries Welsh Public Library Standards Narrative 

[Type text] 
 

 We have ensured that self –service units are available in all buildings so that borrowers are 

able to borrow or return material that may be sensitive without embarrassment or feeling 

awkward.  

 We make sure that the recognised sets of bibliotherapy items are not only easily available 

for all buildings when a prescription is presented, but also that the most commonly used 

titles are also available on open shelves for anyone to access and borrow, even without a 

prescription.  

 We have specific staff task groups who do outreach work promoting literacy within the 

community, working with schools and other groups. 

 We have special stock collections to support work on the various possible ‘life issues’ such as 

eating disorders, bullying, addictions. We also include useful links on our web pages for 

these and many other situations.  

 We are continuing our work with the national GP exercise referral scheme co-ordinators. 

 Staff have undertaken training to deliver physical literacy sessions which are planned to 

form part of the story and rhyme delivery in the next year. In addition staff have undertaken 

Health Walk training and are using this to develop a set of sessions based around local 

history, with the title ‘From Talking Books to Walking Books’ and based on the local history 

stock items. 

 We have developed new links with Active Merthyr and trialled ‘Bringing Books To Life’ 

sessions combining physical literacy, craft and literacy activities and done this with different 

age groups. We know also loan packs for parents and children based on physical literacy and 

reading to get active at home, which include games and play ideas. 

 We are developing ‘information hubs’ on a variety of well-being themes 

 We promote and train users to access sites such as ‘Add to Your Life’ to help empower 

people to make the right choices towards healthier lifestyles.  

 We work hard to ensure that no-one is excluded from being able to use our services. We 

have the transitional lending scheme so that even children whose parents are unwilling to 

complete a membership form may still borrow from us.  

 We work with many groups such as Drink Wise Age Well, Stop Smoking and MIND to deliver 

sessions in libraries 

 We are Dementia Friendly throughout the Library with 100% of the staff having undertaken 

the Dementia Friends training 

 We have a specific home delivery service to anyone who cannot otherwise gain access to 

library stock.  

Page 18



Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 
Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries Welsh Public Library Standards Narrative 

[Type text] 
 

 We provide stock in Polish specifically to cater for the many migrant workers in the area, as 

well as a number of dual language books for children.  

 We also have Portuguese stock for adults and children. 

 We provide, where required and available, dual language Bookstart books in Bookstart 

packs. 

 The Library Service manages the main local studies collection for the local area and has 

significant underlying involvement with tourism.  

 We operate a bookshop that sells any in-print publications on Merthyr Tydfil alongside our 

own publications. 

 Internet services are widely used by migrant workers and students. 

 We play a key role in the development of events and celebrations of cultural diversity in 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough, particularly annual events such as Holocaust Memorial Day 

run by the Library service.  

 We support job seekers and claimants through targeted classes and drop in sessions and 

signpost users to agencies and organisations that can further help them 

Library services in Merthyr Tydfil are supporting the programme for Government and corporate 

priority outcomes across the authority, with 88% of households able to access a building with full 

services. The value of what we do is generally recognised corporately and support for services has 

grown over many years. However, the service is currently challenged to keep levels where there are 

with reducing budgets especially in staffing. The service is committed to providing a quality customer 

experience and will continue to do this to the best of its ability. 

Much of the work carried out in the last year and moving forward into the next will naturally feed 

into each of the goals but will have more focus on the following key areas as we develop our work 

with children and young people and community engagement: 

 Best start to life 

 Living Well 

There is a general feeling however in the area that the focus on these wellbeing objectives has been 

a good thing for Libraries and has raised the profile internally around the contributions made 

through the services provided. 

 

 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 
Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries Welsh Public Library Standards Future Direction 

[Type text] 
 

 

Merthyr Tydfil Public Library Service, as part of Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust, are aware of the 

challenges that low budgets and low staffing can bring. We have been pleased that during our self-

assessment of the new Framework we are reporting a solid basis on which to build. 

It would be erroneous to suggest that in the current financial climate there will be significant 

investment, and no doubt there will be continuing pressures on the current budgets. However there 

is commitment from the Board of Trustees and the Local authority to support library services in 

Merthyr Tydfil in the coming years. 

Co-location has improved services over the past framework and a new community library has 

opened in a school, run by volunteers but supported with staff time and stock from the main library 

service. The work at this service point is set to further develop over the next two years. 

We are continuing to look at different staffing models and the financial constraints we find ourselves 

under will make this work more important as we move forward into the second year of the 

framework. 

Merthyr Tydfil Library Service benefits from a strong, committed team and the support of the staff 

as our most valued resource will help us to deliver against the Welsh Public Library Standards. Our 

focus for the next year will again be on children’s services and the impact on reading that we have 

been concentrating on for the last year or so and we will be continuing to develop our offer for 

schools and individuals. 

 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 
Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries Welsh Public Library Standards Case Studies 

[Type text] 
 

Case Study 1: Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries 

Homelinks 

The Homelinks Library service was maintained when we cut mobile library services as part of the 

efficiency savings prior to 2015. The letter below, written by one of the customers, highlights the 

impact that the retention of this service has: 

 

To all the Homelinks Library staff, 

Just to say a big thank you to all of you for the kind service and support you have given my mother 

over the years. Unfortunately we are stopping the service as mum’s dementia is at a stage where she 

can no longer concentrate on her reading and listening, and I am sure her place is needed by 

someone else. 

She has enjoyed the selections you have chosen for her and everyone has been so lovely. Special 

thanks to Donna who became a real friend, mum always loved her chatty stories and looked forward 

to her visits. Thank you also for including her in events and visits, we have lovely pictures to treasure 

from the Christmas party and the children from the local school you had singing were always the 

highlight for mum. 

All this contact has been invaluable in our journey through dementia and the confidence you gave her 

has helped her to stay so well for so long. Mum is still happy and well so please call in for a cuppa 

when passing, she may not quite remembers so much but still loves a chat! 

Thank you again for a truly wonderful service, keep up the good work 

Love 

Tydfil and Gaynor 

Xx 

 

Christmas party for Homelinks customers 

All staff in Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries have undergone Dementia Friends training and we are 

proud to be Dementia friendly in all our buildings. 

 

Page 23



Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 
Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries Welsh Public Library Standards Case Studies 

[Type text] 
 

Case Study 2: Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries 

Writing Squad: Egypt 

 

During 2017/18 the Writing Squad, who meet regularly at the Library embarked on a project related 

to the Egyptology exhibition at Cyfarthfa Castle Museum and Art Gallery. The Egyptology exhibition 

marked the 100 year anniversary of the death of Major Harry Southey. In 1917 Major Southey was 

shot down in the Battle of Gaza. In his will, he left the people of Merthyr an astounding collection of 

more than 150 Egyptian artefacts collected in his travels around Egypt from his hometown of Merthyr 

Tydfil, including a mummified head. 

The Writing Squad children worked with author Dan Anthony, Merthyr Tydfil Museum service, the Library 

service and Breaking Barriers to develop a series of written and performance works to tell their own story 

based on the collection. 

The project took place over several months and included developing partnership work both 

internally with colleagues in the Museum service, understanding and handling the collection behind 

the scenes and also with external partners and local historians such as Anthony Thomas, who plays a 

starring role as the bouncer in the film. 

During the process the children learned new skills in the following areas: 

 Local History 

 Research skills 

 Creative writing 

 Script Writing 

 Filming 

 Lighting 

 Sound 

 Camera work 

 Editing  

For us as an organisation, whose ethos is based on cultural and leisure activities, this also helps us to 

play our part in developing young people and engaging them with the arts and creative industries 

which are so important in combatting poverty and improving wellbeing. 

As an area of high deprivation after the closure of the mines and the factories which were the 

drivers behind the economy, Merthyr Tydfil is seeing a resurgence as a creative centre with much 

local talent in all forms of the creative arts, as well as key drivers for activity such as software 

development, and showing these to the future generations through activity such as the ‘Journey to 

the Afterlife’ project is so important. 

 

Page 24



Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 
Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries Welsh Public Library Standards Case Studies 

[Type text] 
 

 

 

 

 

 

The mummies head was 

a key talking point for 

the children as they 

developed their work 

around the 

Egyptomania display at 

the Museum. 

 

Dan worked closely with 

the children and 

covered a range of 

creative writing and 

script writing 

techniques. 

 

Members of the Squad 

took part in crafts 

associated with 

Hieroglyphics. 

 

 

 

The film was shown at 

its premiere, with the 

children themselves, 

their parents and carers 

and local dignatories. 

Page 25



Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 
Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries Welsh Public Library Standards Case Studies 

[Type text] 
 

 

The full completed film can be found on: 

http://www.breakingbarriers.org.uk/journey-to-the-afterlife/ 

 

  

Page 26

http://www.breakingbarriers.org.uk/journey-to-the-afterlife/


Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 
Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries Welsh Public Library Standards Case Studies 

[Type text] 
 

Case Study 3: 

SHEP Programme: Goetre School 

 

The SHEP is a school-based programme that provides healthy meals, food and nutrition education, 

physical activity and enrichment sessions to children in areas of social deprivation during the 

summer holidays. ‘Food and Fun’ is the brand identity used at a local level to promote the clubs to 

children and families. 

In 2016 the WLGA piloted the SHEP model nationally in 10 schools, working with 5 local authorities 

and 3 local health boards. Cardiff University provided the evaluation and recommended ‘Further 

scaling up of the model to understand the educational and health benefits to children and their 

families in different contexts.’ The Welsh Government part funded the programme in 2017 to 38 

clubs in 12 local authorities and all 7 local health boards. Further funding in 2018/19 and 2019/20 is 

allocated within the Welsh Government’s draft budget to expand the programme and benefit more 

children and families across Wales. 

During the school holidays, when Free Breakfast in Primary Schools and Free School Meals are not 

available, some families struggle to afford or access food that provides a healthy diet. Some children 

also experience social isolation and a lack of intellectual stimulation, normally provided by school or 

family enrichment activities, and this may contribute to widening the attainment gap. 

Food insecurity is a growing issue in Wales, and the UK as a whole. In 2016 the Public Policy Institute 

for Wales identified this as a major policy priority along with the under-use of school facilities to 

provide community based services and the emotional wellbeing of primary school children. 

SHEP embodies the principles of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and 

contributes towards achieving the well-being goals. Public Service Boards can demonstrate 

sustainable development and realise a wide range of benefits by delivering SHEP in their local 

authority. 

Merthyr Tydfil delivered SHEP for the first time last year in a school which had a challenging 

demographic, and was also one that Libraries had difficulty in engaging with. The team in Active 

Merthyr (having worked with Libraries on several projects prior to this), invited Libraries to 

participate and deliver some of the added value activities. This included crafts, creative writing, play 

and reading. The children involved (100 in total) all completed the Summer Reading Challenge 

during the SHEP programme through independent reading. 53% of these children were not Library 

members before the sessions began. Due to safeguarding issues, we were unable to photograph the 

classes or the work going on. 

At the National SHEP Conference held in Cardiff, the presentation on Merthyr Tydfil spoke highly of 

the contribution of the Library service, we were listed as a key partner and on the slide about the 

children’s feedback we were second on the list of what they enjoyed most about the programme. 

 

Page 27



Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 
Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries Welsh Public Library Standards Case Studies 

[Type text] 
 

 

 

Partners who helped deliver the programme, which has also helped us develop links with outside 

bodies. 

 

 

This has certainly helped to raise the profile of the service and its contribution to the wider 

education curriculum within Merthyr Tydfil and this year we will be back delivering again as the 

programme goes from strength to strength in Merthyr Tydfil. 

 

Page 28



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Work Programme / Rhaglenni Gwaith 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind scrutiny committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached draft work programme and approves, revises 
or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.2 in planning 
for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 19th November 2018 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 27th November 2018 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals. The key outcomes (or components) for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure that establishes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination. The key outcomes (or components) to support the 
response to this objective include:  
 

 Making skills work for Merthyr Tydfil: developing the workforce of the future;  

 Developing the environment and infrastructure for business to flourish;  

 Communities protect, enhance and promote our heritage and cultural assets;  

 Developing safer communities; and  

 Supporting and accommodating those most disadvantaged in the housing market. 
 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside. The key outcomes (or components) for communities to 
protect, enhance and promote our environment and countryside include:  
 

 Minimise environmental damage through prevention of pollution;  

 Maximise efficient use of materials and resources by means of the waste 
hierarchy;  

 Developing good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure and open 
spaces; and  

 Promoting and supporting the use of renewable and low carbon energy. 
 
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. To 
ensure a holistic approach is met in this objective, the key outcomes (or 
components) for Living Well will include:  
 

 Safeguarding children and adults who are at risk of harm;  

 Tackling adverse childhood experiences and developing community Resilience;  

 Promoting healthy behaviours and increased levels of physical activity;  

 Promote good emotional wellbeing and improved mental health;  

 Clear and accessible information and advice; and  

 Services that provide people with the ability to live in their own home 
 

 
3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 

that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 

Page 30



matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a scrutiny work programme? 
 

a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Wellbeing 
Objectives and priorities? 

b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the committee? 

             
This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue  
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation / review 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue 

 

Q) What outcome is the committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 
 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 

Page 31



d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  
 
What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 
 
Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet Members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 
 
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

  
Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 
  

Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 
 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 
b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 
c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 

to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

Page 32



e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 
f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 
g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 

calls for evidence). 
 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 

 

APPENDIX I 

Page 34



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & 
Cabinet 
Member  

Scrutiny Focus  

5
th

 June 2018 

Scrutiny 
Committee Work 

Programme 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris 
Long / Steve 

Peters 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Committee to discuss the draft work programme as prepared by the 
Task and Finish Group 
 

Post-16 Home to 
School Transport – 
Post Consultation 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas /  

Alyn Owen / 
Paul Lewis 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Post-16 transport is discretionary.  The Transport Section is responsible for 
ensuring value for money; whilst the Education Department od responsible for the policy.  This 
report will provide Scrutiny Members with an update on the recent public consultation findings.  
Members are asked to note and debate the report’s content and to scrutinise the approach taken 
which has led to the identification of a preferred option amongst the 5 options listed within the 
body of the report. 

17
th

 July 2018 

Cyfarthfa Heritage 
Area 

Alyn Owen / 
Chris Long / Zoe 

Thomas 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee will receive a report on developments linked to 
the Cyfarthfa Heritage Area and the relationship with the Leisure Trust in ensuring the asset if 
effectively managed following the significant investment in the Heritage Area.  Officers will also 
offer Elected Members an update on the recent Design Commission Wales report and the 
Council’s involvement with this at this stage. 

11
th

 September 
2018 

Homelessness & 
Homelessness 

Prevention 
Strategy - Progress 

Update 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Steve 
Peters / Julian 

Pike 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Part 2 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 places a statutory requirement on 
every Local Council to produce a Homelessness Prevention Strategy that must be consulted upon; 
formulated and adopted by December 2018.  Officers will provide Elected Members with a 
progress update on the ongoing development of this Homelessness Prevention strategy and seek 
Members input on this. 
 

30
th

 October 
2018 

Homelessness & 
Homelessness 

Prevention 
Strategy - Progress 

Update 

Alyn Owen / 
Steve Peters / 

Julian Pike 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Part 2 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 places a statutory requirement on 
every Local Council to produce a Homelessness Prevention Strategy that must be consulted upon; 
formulated and adopted by December 2018.  Officers will provide Elected Members with a 
progress update on the ongoing development of this Homelessness Prevention strategy and seek 
Members input on this. 
 

P
age 35



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

(As the Crime & 
Disorder 

Committee) 
 

Violent Crime: 
Violence Against 
Women & Girls 

Alyn Owen / 
Steve Peters / 

Ryan Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Violence against Women and Girls was found to be a key priority within 
the community safety needs assessment.  Members will be offered an overview of violent crime in 
general, with a specific focus on Violence Against Women and Girls. 
 

27
th

 November 
2018 
 
 
 

 

Economic Growth 
Strategy & 
Partnership 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas /  

Alyn Owen / 
Chris Long  

 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Committee will receive a progress update on the Economic Growth 
Partnership’s activities and the development of the Economic Growth Strategy and accompanying 
Delivery Plan.  
 

Air Quality 
Management 
Action Plan – 

Progress Update 

Alyn Owen / 
Steve Peters / 

Susan Gow 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following the declaration of an Air Quality Management Area around 
Twynyrodyn Road, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is required to undertake formal public 
consultation to consider feedback against 3 options.  The Committee are requested to scrutinise 
the consultation process and feedback received from this public consultation and Elected 
Members will further support the development of the required Air Quality Action Plan. 

Introduction to the 
Geosense 

Intelligence System 

Alyn Owen  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Officers will offer a practical demonstration of the Geosense 
Data/Intelligence system which has recently been brought in to the Council by the Community 
Regeneration Team.   

15th January 
2019 

Continued 
Development of 

the Town Centre & 
the Night-time 

Economy 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas /  

Alyn Owen / 
Chris Long / 

Rhian Prosser /  
Paul Lewis / 
Ryan Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -  Following the Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 17th April 2018; 
Committee Members requested officers return to provide Members with an update including the 
further development of the Town Centre Master Plan and the night-time economy.   Members will 
also receive an update on Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs) to date along with early 
indicators of the outcomes noted.  

(As the Crime & 
Disorder 

Committee) 
 

Substance Misuse – 
Drug Litter update 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas /  

Alyn Owen / 
Paul Lewis / 
Ryan Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following presentation to the Scrutiny Committee on 17/04/18 around the 
issue of substance misuse and drug litter, officers were requested to return with an update on 
progress made.  Elected Members will be given a practical demonstration of the drug litter 
reporting app currently under development; whilst officers will demonstrate how the intelligence 
gathered through this app will impact on the Council’s response rates etc. 
 

P
age 36



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5th March 
2019 

Destination 
Development – 

Progress Update 
 

Alyn Owen / 
Chris Long / 
Ryan Barry 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -   The Scrutiny Committee will receive an update report on the progress 
made linked to the work undertaken by the Council linked to Destination Development and will 
enable Members to identify progress made against the Destination Management Plan  

Active Travel Alyn Owen / 
Chris Long / 

Cheryl Jones / 
Alyn Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Scrutiny Committee Members will receive an update report on the work 
being undertaken linked to the Active Travel Act and scrutinise the process for the development of 
Active Travel Routes.  This report will include feedback on the findings of both the initial and 
follow-up consultation exercises. 

16th April 2019 

Trading Standards 
and Licensing 

Alyn Owen / 
Paul Lewis / 
Steve Peters 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report outlining how the work of this department contributes to public 
health & wellbeing will be delivered to Committee Members.  An update on the practical activities 
to reduce the risks of the public becoming victims to scams; rogue traders etc. will be given, and 
Members will be asked to consider methods of intelligence sharing with Trading 
Standards/Licensing which could support improved outcomes for citizens. 

(As the Crime & 
Disorder 

Committee) 
Cwm Taf 

Community Safety 
Partnership & Plan 
– Progress Update 

Cllr Geraint 
Thomas /  

Alyn Owen / 
Steve Peters / 
Ryan Evans / 

Paul Lewis 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following a presentation to the Committee on 17/04/18; Members will 
receive an update on the requirement to develop an Action Plan against the key priorities 
identified following completion of the Cwm Taf Community Safety Needs Assessment.  Elected 
Members will be advised what the findings of the Cwm Taf Strategic Assessment has had in 
practical terms. 
 

 
Additional Items for consideration by Scrutiny Committee 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Enterprise & Business Support Alyn Owen / 
Chris Long / 
Ryan Barry / 
Lance 
Whitely 

The Scrutiny Committee will receive a report on the developments associated 
with Enterprise and Business Support including an update on the Orbit Centre; 
the support available for Town Centre Businesses and the Social Enterprise 
Strategy 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Review of the Updated Common Housing 
Allocation Policy (Living Merthyr Tydfil) 

and its impact on Citizens 

Alyn Owen / 
Steve 
Peters / 
Julian Pike 

The refocused Common Housing Allocations Policy (Living Merthyr Tydfil) was 
approved by Councillors on 212nd March 2017; with a ‘go live’ data scheduled 
for 3rd April 2018.  Members will be asked to consider a report highlighting the 
initial outcomes linked to the amended Housing Allocation Policy and the 
impact this has had as well as the implementation of the new housing software 
package, CIVICA and its impact in assisting the allocation of social housing in 
accordance with the policy. 

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Economic Growth Strategy and Partnership
	5 Welsh National Library Standards
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	6 Work Programme 2018/19
	Appendix 1


